CITY OF HANOVER
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING --HYBRID ZOOM
APRIL 26, 2021
OFFICIAL MINUTES

Call to Order

Stan Kolasa called the April 26, 2021, Planning Commission Meeting to order at 7:00 pm in person and via
Hybrid Zoom. Members present were Stan Kolasa, Jim Schendel, Dean Kuitunen, Mike Christenson. Also
present City Planner Cindy Nash, Council Liaison Maryann Hallstein, City Administrator Brian Hagen
acting as Zoom moderator and Administrative Assistant Amy Biren. Gretchen Barrett and Jim Zajicek
were absent. Guests were present.

Approval of the Agenda
MOTION by Schendel to approve the agenda, seconded by Kuitunen.
Motion carried unanimously.

Approval of Minutes from the March 22, 2021, Regular Meeting
MOTION by Schendel to approve the March 22, 2021, minutes, seconded by Kuitunen.
Motion carried unanimously.

Citizen’s Forum

John Ganfield, 10171 Beebe Lake Road: He is planning on submitting an application for a land
use permit for a detached garage that would be located to the front of the home. Ganfield said he cannot
extend the existing attached garage as the well is located right next to it. He would like to construct a 32
foot deep and 44 foot wide garage. He showed the approximate location on an aerial photo of a portion of
his property. He also supplied members with a copy of an existing survey of the property. Ganfield said
he plans to make it similar in architectural style and finish as the house. Kuitunen asked him if he already
had a detached garage. Ganfield replied yes and that it was 42 feet wide and 60 feet deep. Christenson
asked if the proposed garage would be for business or personal use. Ganfield replied for personal use.
Christenson also asked the size of the property and was told it was just over five acres. Kuitunen asked for
the location of the drain field (septic) and Ganfield said that they are on City sewer but have a well. Kolasa
asked if Ganfield wanted feedback and he replied yes. Nash replied that feedback cannot be given as this
is just preliminary and applications and materials have not been submitted. The Planning Commission does
not have anything to review. She continued that she would be happy to give some guidance and feedback
in order to initiate the project. Ganfield replied that he understood and that he knows the steps needed,
particularly getting a survey of the property completed.

Public Hearing
Variance from Architectural Requirements for 283 River Road

Kolasa closed the Planning Commission meeting and opened the Public Hearing at 7:14 pm.

Nash reviewed the requests of allowing steel siding and the construction of a chain link fence with privacy
slats at 283 River Road. As the zoning district in which this property is located does not allow for steel
siding, a variance must be granted. She pointed out photos of the building where the desired steel siding
would be located. These were provided by the applicant, Doug Prindle. Nash went on to explain that the
existing fence is in disrepair and needed to be fixed. The location of the fence would not be a variance,
rather members should consider it a site plan. The fence would become a chain link fence with privacy
slats.

Schendel asked Prindle about the location of the new chain link fence. Prindle said that it would be on both
the east and south sides of the property.



Christenson asked Prindle why he wanted to change the siding. Prindle said that they repainted the
buildings last year and the lap siding on the building warped from the heat. The siding is going to be
replaced, either with vinyl or if the variance is granted, steel siding. Christenson asked if the awnings would
be retained. Prindle replied yes.

Kuitunen asked Nash if the slats would meet the opacity requirements of the fence ordinance. She replied
yes.

Hallstein asked if there was a height change in the proposed fence. Prindle said yes, the chain link fence
would be eight feet tall and it would be higher than the existing fence. She asked about the color of the
slats. Prindle said they would be black to match the black, powder-coated chain link.

Kolasa said he was okay with the siding being steel and matching the other buildings. He went on to say
that the property looks better than it has in a long time. Schendel agreed and said that the new fence would
be a plus. Kuitunen agreed.

Kolasa closed the Public Hearing and re-opened the Planning Commission at 7:22 pm.

MOTION by Kuitunen to recommend sending the variance from architectural standards and the site plan
for the fence forward to the City Council for approval, seconded by Schendel.
Motion carried unanimously.

Public Hearing
Amendment Requiring Proposed Deck on New Construction Survey and Building Permit

Kolasa closed the Planning Commission meeting and opened the Public Hearing at 7:24 pm.

Nash explained that an amendment to the ordinances related to building permits is before the Planning
Commission tonight based on past discussions related to new construction home permits. Issues have arisen
related to future deck permits where the proposed deck would not meet setback requirements based on how
the home was constructed or the style of home chosen did not allow for anything but a small, ledge-like
deck. The proposal is for a future deck to be included on the survey of a new construction home which is
included as part of the building permit application. A ten by ten foot (10 x 10) deck would need to be
shown on the survey and that it would be able to meet the required setbacks. If the deck did not meet the
setbacks or was smaller than the required size, the permit application would be denied.

Nash continued saying while Planning Commission has not been presented with many deck applicants
asking for a variance, staff has had several permit applications recently that the deck plans needed to be
modified in order to meet the setback requirements based on how the home was constructed.

The City did receive an email from a new construction builder, Wade Klick from Green Homes. Nash read
the email (attached to the minutes). Klick was not in favor of the amendment, stating that decks come in
all shapes and sizes and that the engineers should be looking at this when the development is being platted.
Nash replied that this is reviewed during the platting process. She also said that often times it is the house
chosen on a lot that does not allow the deck to be constructed as it does not meet setbacks.

Kuitunen said that adding this amendment would add another layer, ensuring that a deck could be built and
satisfy the setback requirements.

Christenson asked whether or not a house plan could be designed in a manner to make it not obvious that a
deck was going to be constructed in the future. Nash said it would be a possibility, but hopefully, the
building inspector would not approve a “change order” or “site revision” allowing it.



Kuitunen said he didn’t see any unintentional consequences of adding this amendment. Kolasa agreed
saying it would be simple for this to be added to a survey.

Hallstein asked if Nash has seen many house plans where there isn’t a rear egress and that when people buy
a house, if the space is there for a deck, it is assumed a deck can be constructed. Nash replied that the
amendment was written to identify a ledger board or a door above grade so that if a ledger board was absent
on the house, the ordinance was still applicable. Kuitunen added that this helps in getting people to plan
for the type of home and the right size for the lot.

Christenson said that the Planning Commission could also revisit it in the future if it becomes problematic.
Kolasa closed the Public Hearing and re-opened the Planning Commission at 7:34 pm.

MOTION by Christenson to recommend sending forward to Council approval of the proposed amendment
to require a ten by ten foot deck be included as part of the survey requirements for new construction homes
as written, seconded by Kuitunen.

Motion carried unanimously.

Reports and Announcements

Kuitunen asked about for an update on 15" Street. Hagen replied that a meet was held last week
and another lift is to be applied using an automatic leveling function that will take care of the issues.
Hallstein added that Council directed WSB to be present and supervise the process.

Christenson asked about burning the stormwater ponds. Biren said burning restrictions are in place and it
may be done after these are lifted.

Biren reminded everyone that Clean Up Day is May 8" from 8 am to Noon at Public Works.
Adjournment

MOTION by Schendel to adjourn, seconded by Kuitunen.

Motion carried unanimously.

Meeting adjourned at 7:42 pm.

ATTEST:

Amy L. Biren
Administrative Assistant



